Democratic Service
Complete Agenda o e

CAERNARFON
Gwynedd

CYNGOR
GWYNEDD LL55 1SH

Meeting

SACRE

Date and Time

3.30 pm, TUESDAY, 4TH FEBRUARY, 2025

Location

Virtual Meeting - Zoom
(for public access please contact us)

Contact Point

Jasmine Jones
01286 679667

jasminejones@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

(DISTRIBUTED 27/01/25)

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru



http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/

SACRE
MEMBERSHIP (7)

Plaid Cymru (4)
Councillors

Menna Baines Meryl Roberts Paul John Rowlinson
Elin Walker Jones

Independent (3)
Councillors

Anne Lloyd-Jones John Pughe Roberts
Angela Russell

Ex-officio Members
Chair and Vice-Chair of the Council

Christian and Other Religions and Non-Religious Philosophical

Convictions

Natham Abrams

Mr Mohamed Arabi
Eurfryn Davies
Bethan Davies Jones
Edward Parri-Jones
Eirian Bradley Roberts
Dr Sibani Roy

Rev. Nick Sissons
Patrycja Bielak Smith
Gwawr Maelor Williams
Naomi Wood

Teachers

Miriam A. Amlyn
Heledd Jones
Emma Roberts
Vacant Seat - NAHT

Co-Opted Members:

Eleri Moss

Judaism
Islam
Union of Welsh Baptists
Union of Welsh Independents
Humanist
Catholic Church
Hinduism
Methodist Church
Buddhism
Presbyterian Church of Wales
Church in Wales

NAS/UWT
NEU
UCAC
NAHT

Secondary Heads



AGENDA

QUIET REFLECTION OR PRAYER

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies.

DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

To receive any declaration of personal interest.

URGENT ITEMS

To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman
for consideration.

MINUTES 4-7

The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this
committee held on the 19th November, 2024 be signed as a true record

SACRE GWYNEDD ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2023/24 8 -17

To consider the SACRE Gwynedd Annual Report for 2023/24.

UPDATE ON THE TEACHING PROVISION OF RELIGION, 18-64
VALUES AND ETHICS IN SCHOOLS IN WALES REPORT

To receive an update on the report by Dr Gareth Evans-Jones.



Agenda Iltem 5

S.A.C.R.E. - STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS
EDUCATION

19/11/2024

Attendance:

Councillors: Menna Baines, Meryl Roberts, Anne Lloyd-Jones, Elin Walker Jones and Paul
Rowlinson.

Others:

Christian and Other Faiths and Non-religious Philosophical Convictions: Eurfryn Davies
(Union of Welsh Baptists).

Teachers: Miriam A. Amlyn (NASUWT).

Officers: Buddug Mair Huws (Assistant Resources Officer and SACRE Clerk), Rhodri Jones and
Jasmine Jones (Democracy Services Officers).

Co-opted Members: Eleri Moss (Secondary Headteachers).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:

Item 6: Klavdja Erzen (Jewish History Association of South Wales).

1. PRAYER OR QUIET REFLECTION

The meeting was opened with a prayer from Councillor Elin Walker Jones.
2. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from:

Councillor John Pughe Roberts

Gwern ap Rhisiart (Head of Education Department)

Nick Sissons (The Methodist Church)

Bethan Davies Jones (The Union of Welsh Independents)
Naomi Wood (The Church in Wales)

3. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST

There were no declarations of personal interest.

4. URGENT ITEMS

It was noted that a letter had been received from Phil Lord, offering specialist support to the

Committee. It was agreed that an e-mail would be sent to Committee members to see who would
attend a meeting with Phil Lord to determine whether or not to accept his offer of specialist support.

1 Page 4



5. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The Chair signed the minutes of the previous meeting of this Committee held on 2 July 2024 as a
true record.

6. JEWISH HISTORY ASSOCIATION OF SOUTH WALES

The item was presented by Klavdja Erzen (Jewish History Association of South Wales — JHASW)
drawing attention to the following main points:

It was explained that the JHASW had been established in November 2017 with the aim of
preserving and sharing Wales’s Jewish heritage with the broader public by addressing
antisemitism, Holocaust denial and misinformation. It was also explained that the work they did was
varied including digitising and publishing materials, researching, talks, digital heritage paths and
creating educational resources.

It was noted that, to date, there were twenty educational resources for the Holocaust. These
resources had been created in partnership with the Centre for the Movement of People,
Aberystwyth University. It was explained that the resources were bilingual and they aligned with
the Curriculum for Wales. It was confirmed that they were suitable for learners aged between 9 and
14 and were available free of charge. It was also noted that the resources were relevant to the local
area and encompassed four different fields: humanities, the arts, health and well-being, and
languages, literacy and communication. She emphasised that all the resources were available on
the People's Collection Wales website and also on the Hwb website.

She noted that the Association had developed professional learning opportunities for teachers and
schools in order to share their resources. It was explained that the training was 30-45 minutes long,
could be provided on-line or in person, had been tailored to the needs of teachers and schools and
was free of charge.

Klavdja was thanked for her presentation, and the committee congratulated her and the Association
for developing such valuable resources. The focus on links with local history was especially
welcomed.

7. AN UPDATE ON THE WORK OF DEVELOPING THE COLLECTIVE WORSHIP GUIDANCE

It was noted that only a few responses had been received to the letter sent in June, and therefore
a reminder letter had been sent out and the responses were expected by 11 January 2025.

8. REPORT ON THE TEACHING PROVISION OF RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS IN
SCHOOLS IN WALES

The report, published in April 2024 by the Wales National Centre for Religious Education (Bangor
University), was presented by Councillor Menna Baines, drawing attention to the following main
points:

It was noted that the authors of the report had sent questionnaires to primary and secondary
schools and had received 58 responses. It was noted that teachers in general supported the
change from religious education to Religion, Values and Ethics. It was explained that there were
complaints about a lack of Welsh language resources, especially, with only one official English
coursebook being available at the moment. It was also noted that there was a lack of training, and
the training was inconsistent from county to county. It was felt that the subject of Religion, Values
and Ethics was being minimised and did not receive the same amount of time as other subjects. It
was noted that the focus remained narrow despite changing the title of the subject, and that

2 Page 5



traditional religions continued to receive the greatest focus. It was noted that the report authors
were calling for an urgent solution.

During the discussion, the following matters were raised: -

It was noted that the report reiterated what many teachers were saying. It was explained that the
coursebook introduced the religions separately, which was contrary to how schools had chosen to
teach them, it was therefore difficult to use.

It was reported that the situation was damning, and major changes were essential. Concern was
expressed that only 17 schools had confirmed that their school met the legal requirements, which
suggested that many schools were breaking the law. It was noted that this needed to be brought
to the attention of Wales SACRE. It was noted that the department in Gwynedd needed to look into
this and respond with a plan to rectify the situation.

It was further noted regarding the coursebook that it was not fit for purpose and was not available
in Welsh. It was also noted there was no confirmation of the intention to translate it. It was proposed
to send a letter to the WJEC regarding the coursebook, and a copy of it to the Minister for Education.

RESOLVED:
* To ask the Education Department to look further into the matters raised in the report
within Gwynedd.
* To ask the Wales SACRE to consider the report on a national level.
* That the Chair sends a letter to the WJEC and sends a copy to the Welsh Minister
for Education regarding translating the Religion, Values and Ethics coursebook.
* The Chair to ask Gareth Evans-Jones for any update since the report was published.

9. GCSE RELIGIOUS STUDIES DRAFT SPECIFICATION SEPTEMBER 2025

An update on the draft was presented by Miriam A. Amlyn (NASUWT) drawing attention to the
following main points:

There was a concern that the coursebooks were not made available in time and were not bilingual.
It was noted that between 120 and 140 hours of guided learning hours would be required, but only
two hours a week, namely 76 hours a year, were being provided. Concern was expressed that this
would lead to a disadvantage for pupils when preparing for the exam.

It was noted that two pieces of coursework would be introduced alongside the two existing exams.
It was emphasised it would not be possible to change the times that had been earmarked for
completing coursework, which would reduce the time given to teach the subject and prepare for
the exam.

In terms of the content, it was noted that the religions would be dealt with quite similarly to how
they were previously, but with greater detail in some fields. More content had been included on
non-religious beliefs, human rights, and new content, not included in the old coursebook. Despite
this, it was noted that the content was good, but may be quite heavy in terms of the additional
details in some areas. The importance of publishing the coursebook in both Welsh and English at
the same time was emphasised.

Further concern was expressed regarding the introduction of coursework, especially in relation to
Al and its possible use by pupils to cheat. It was noted that the responsibility for preventing such
cheating fell on the teacher, nevertheless, it was difficult to manage classroom activities to prevent
such cheating.

During the discussion, the following matters were raised:-

3 Page 6



It was noted that the time allocated for optional subjects varied from school to school, as in Ysgol
y Moelwyn, where three hours a week were provided. It was explained that the time allocation was
determined by the head teacher. It was also noted that this school had begun teaching the optional
subjects in February in the past, allowing for more time to teach and to reduce behaviour-related
problems. However, it was noted that the Welsh Government had suspended such an arrangement
this year, which was a cause for concern in terms of maintaining behaviour and interest, with the
addition of losing a term's worth of contact.

It was expressed that the coursework had been welcomed by the teacher at Ysgol y Moelwyn, as
she felt that the subject had been at a disadvantage in the past by comparison to other subjects
that had an element of coursework.

In relation to the concern of using Al to cheat, it was suggested that it could be useful to ask the
pupils to see whether they understood what they had written to confirm whether or not it was
actually their own work. However, it was explained that this would take time and it could cause
conflict between pupils and staff.

It was asked how the time commitment compared between the current plan and the previous one.
In response, it was explained that the answer was not at hand but was certain that it would be more
practical with the introduction of coursework.

RESOLVED:
* That the Chair sends a letter to the creator of the Key Stage 3 book regarding the new
resources.
* That the Chair contacts Myrddin ap Dafydd (Gwasg Carreg Gwalch) about the idea of
creating a coursebook for Religion, Values and Ethics.

The meeting commenced at 3.30pm and concluded at 5.00pm.

CHAIR

4 Page 7



Agenda Iltem 6

Standing Advisory Council for Religious Education

GWYNEDD
ANNUAL REPORT

September 2023 - August 2024

Head of the Education Department

Mr Gwern ap Rhisiart

Page 8



CONTENT

SECTION 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 Introduction by SACRE Chairman: Councillor Menna Baines

SECTION 2: ADVICE TO ANGLESEY COUNCIL

2.1 SACRE’s function in relation to Religious Education
2.2 The Locally Agreed Syllabus

2.3 How good are standards?

2.4 The response of Gwynedd Council

2.5 Religious Education and the Welsh Government
2.6 Religious Education and ESTYN

2.7 SACRE’s function in relation to Collective Worship

SECTION 3: ANNEXES
3.1 General information about the composition of SACRE

3.2 Membership of Gwynedd SACRE 2023-24
3.3 SACRE meetings held during the reporting period

3.4 Guidance provided by Gwynedd SACRE to members who attend collective worship in schools

Page 9



SECTION 1:
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

SACRE’s function in relation to Religious Education
A clear outline of SACRE’s function is given in the Welsh Office Circular 10/94
SACRE advises the LEA on matters relating to the provision of Religious Education and Collective Worship,

and is responsible for the establishment of an ad hoc body, the Agreed Syllabus Conference, to produce or
consider amendments to the Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education.

1.1 Introduction by the Chairman

Councillor Menna Baines
Chairman, 2023/2024

Page 10




SECTION 2: ADVICE to GWYNEDD EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

2.1 SACREF’s function in relation to Religion, Values and Ethics
A clear outline of SACRE's function is given in the Welsh Office Circular 10/94.

SACRE advises the LEA on matters relating to the provision of Religious Education and Collective Worship, and is
responsible for the establishment of an ad hoc body, the Agreed Syllabus Conference, to produce or consider
amendments to the Agreed Syllabus for Religious Education.

2.2 The Locally Agreed Syllabus

Gwynedd and Anglesey SACREs have adopted the ‘National Exemplar Framework for Religious Education for 5-19
year old learners’ as the Locally Agreed Syllabus for Gwynedd and Anglesey (2008).

A SACRE’s main function is “...to advise the authority upon such matters connected with religious worship in county
schools and the religious education to be given in accordance with an agreed syllabus as the authority may refer to
the council or as the council may see fit.’

Education Reform Act 1988 s5.11 (1) (a)

As a result of the emergence of the Curriculum and Assessment Act (Wales) 2022 and the establishment of the
Curriculum for Wales, the Agreed Syllabus Conference was held for Gwynedd SACRE on 15 February 2023. The
unanimous decision of the Conference was to recommend the adoption of the Welsh Government's Guidelines on
Religion, Values and Ethics.

On the 13 September 2022 the Gwynedd Council Cabinet approved Agreed Syllabus Conference’ recomendation and
the the Welsh Government's Guidelines on Religion, Values and Ethics was adopted as the Agreed Syllabus for
Gwynedd schools.

2.3 How good are standards?

In previous years Gwynedd SACRE has monitorod religious education and collective worship by:

e receiving a summary of a school’s self-evaluation report in response to the key questions of ESTYN’s
Inspection Framework;

e analysing the Local Authority’s teacher assessments and secondary examination results;

e reviewing ESTYN inspection reports for references to ‘religious education’ or ‘collective worship’;

e inviting teachers and head teachers to share their good practices with members in the termly meetings, and
by,

e accepting schools’ invitations to attend a collective worship session.

2.3.1 Schools’ self-evaluation reports

SACRE members resolved at their meeting on 9 February 2011, to continue to receive copies of schools’ self-
evaluation of religious education and collective worship and asked head teachers to use a revised template.
Gwynedd SACRE, Anglesey head teachers and members of the National Advisory Panel for Religious Education
(NAPfRE) have approved the new template which was redrafted in response to the new ESTYN Inspection
Framework (Appendix 3.5). The SACRE clerk, who is an assistant education quality improvement officer with
Gwynedd Council is responsible for distributing the template and collating the self-evaluation reports. Due to the
COVID-19 pandemic ESTYN visits ceased during March 2020. From September 2022 to August 2023 ESTYN did not
undertake a full inspection programme, although some schools volunteered to pilot revised inspection
arrangements. The revised inspection programme resumed in September 2023. Gwynedd schools were not asked to
provide self-evaluations for the Gwynedd SACRE as a result of these changes.

Page 11



2.3.2 Teacher assessment and external examination results in the secondary sector

KS3 teacher assessments and KS4 and KS5 external examination results were not discussed during the
SACRE meetings held in 2023-2024.

2.4 Response of Local Authority

Mair Huws, Assistant Education Resources Officer for Gwynedd Council ensures that any guidance or
recommenations made by Gwynedd SACRE is communicated directly to the primary and secondary head teachers.

Up until April 2018, Gwynedd Council commissioned GWE (School Effectiveness and Improvement Service) to
support Gwynedd SACRE meetings and to represent Gwynedd SACRE in regional and national meetings. In March
2018, the Gwynedd SACRE clerk was notified that GWE would no longer be providing professional support to
Gwynedd SACRE.

Both Primary and some Secondary schools implemented the Curriculum for Wales from September 2022 (and
September 2023 in the case of some Secondary schools). Education is therefore in the midst of a period of great
change, which made it impossible to monitor standards within Religious Education during the year.

Following a further discussion with GwWE it was agreed that Bethan James, and advisor with GWE, would re-start
supporting gwynedd SACRE from the Autumn 2023 term. The sad news came about the sudden death of Bethan
James at the beginning of 2024 before she was able to fully undertake the role.

What are SACRE’s recommendations to Gwynedd Council?
e Ensure that Gwynedd SACRE receives appropriate support and strategic leadership to discharge
its duties as a statutory committee

2.5 Religion, Values and Ethics and the Welsh Government

Curriculum for Wales

e During 2014-15, Professor Graham Donaldson was commissioned to undertake an independent review of
the curriculum and assessment arrangements in Wales.

e The Wales Association of SACRES (WASACRE) is represented on the Welsh Government’s Strategic
Stakeholders Group and representatives from the National Advisory Panel for Religious Education (NAPfRE)
have attended meetings during the year with representatives from the Welsh Government’s Curriculum
Department as they support the pioneer schools and develop a Curriculum for Wales.

e The Curriculum and Assessment Act (Wales) 2022 established the Curriculum for Wales under the law,
replacing the Basic Curriculum (that includes, for example, national and local curricula noted in Part 7 of the
Education Act 2002).

e The Curriculum and Assessment Act (Wales) 2022 notes the four purposes of the curriculum under the law.
It also notes the mandatory elements (which includes religion, values and ethics) that encompass the 3 to
16 years old learning continuum:

e Religion, values and ethics (RVE) is, therefore a statutory requirement of the Curriculum for Wales and is
mandatory for all learners from ages 3 to 16. RVE forms part of the Humanities Area.

e The guidance on RVE (Religion, values and ethics guidance) contained within the Humanities Area is statutory
and published under section 71 of the Act and designed to assist those responsible under the Act for
designing the RVE syllabus as part of the school curriculum

2.6 Religion, Values and Ethics and ESTYN
Page 12


https://hwb.gov.wales/curriculum-for-wales/humanities/designing-your-curriculum/#religion,-values-and-ethics-guidance

Gwynedd SACRE recommends the following resources to RE teachers and head teachers:
e www.estyn.org.uk;
Religious Education in Secondary Schools (ESTYN, June 2013);
Supplementary Guidance: collective worship in non-denominational schools (ESTYN, October 2017);
Religious Education in Key stage 2 and Key stage 3 (ESTYN, June 2018)

SACRE’s recommendations to Gwynedd Council
e Ensure that schools and secondary RE teachers are aware of the findings of the ESTYN report
and act on the recommendations.

2.7 SACRE’s function in relation to collective worship

Welsh Office Circular 10/94 notes that the LEA should work with SACRE to keep an eye on the daily collective
worship provision, and should consider with it any steps which may be taken to improve such provision.

The collective worship must be “of a broadly Christian character”. The “determination” procedure permits the
suspension of these requirements in relation to some or all of the pupils in a school where they are deemed
inappropriate. .
e SACRE members and Gwynedd schools have received collective worship guidance documents:
> ‘Supplementary guidance for inspecting collective worship in non-denominational schools’ (ESTYN,
October 2017);
» Guidance on Collective Worship (WASACRE, June 2013).

e Gwynedd SACRE monitors standard of collective worship in schools by reviewing schools’ self-evaluation
reports;

e No self-evaluation reports were received in 2023-2024 as no school was asked to prepare one.

Determinations

There was no request from any school for a determination in relation to collective worship

SACRE’s Recommendations to Gwynedd Council
e Ensure that schools conform to the statutory requirement for collective worhsip and
provide quality collective worship sessions;
e Encourage schools to invite Gwynedd SACRE Member to attend collective worship
within schools

Page 13


http://www.estyn.org.uk/

SECTION 3: ANNEXES

3.1 Administrative matters in relation to SACRE

a)

b)

c)

SACRE was established by Gwynedd Education Committee in 1996 to include:

Christians and Other Faiths, namely,
e The Methodist Church
e The Union of Welsh Baptists
e The Presbyterian Church of Wales
e The Church in Wales
e Union of Welsh Independents
e The Catholic Church

Teachers, namely;
e The Association of School and College Leaders (ASCL)
e National Union of Teachers in Wales (UCAC)
e National Association of Schoolmasters and Union of Women Teachers (NASUWT)
e National Union of Teachers (NUT)
e Association of Teachers and Lecturers (ATL)
e National Association of Head Teachers (NAHT)

Elected members

The Constitution of Gwynedd SACRE was reviewed in April 2019 to include:

e Christianity and other religions- keep at 6 Propose to invite one representative from the
Buddhism, Islam, Hinduism, Judaism, Sikhism and the Humanist beliefs

e Representation of Teachers and Headteachers - keep at 5

e Elected Members - keep at 7

e Co-opted - SACRE Committee to retain the right to co-opt members
e there are 3 votes, namely 1 for each Group - the Co-opted members do not have a vote

The Constitution was further reviewed in September 2022 to amend the Teacher group as
follows:

e Representation of Teachers and Headteachers — retain at 5
The seats to be allocated as follows:

3 seats to be shared between the recognised Teachers’ Unions (NAS/UWT; UCAC; NEU;
ASCL and NAHT) —to be decided by the Gwynedd Teachers’ Union Forum.

1 seat to be filled by the Primary and Special Catchment Areas Consultative Group
(GYDCA)

1 seat to be filled by the Gwynedd Secondary Headteachers Group (GSCU)

Page 14



3.2 SACRE membership of Gwynedd 2023-24

Christians and Other Religions
The Methodist Church

Union of Welsh Baptists
Presbyterian Church of Wales
Church in Wales

Union of Welsh Independents
The Catholic Church

Buddism

Humanists

Judaism

Islam

Hinduism

Teachers’ representatives
UCAC

NASUWT

NEU

Secondary Headteachers group (GSCU)
Primary Headteachers group (GYDCA)

Local Members

Councillor Paul Rowlinson
Councillor Meryl Roberts
Councillor Elin Walker Jones
Councillor Menna Baines
Councillor Jina Gwyrfai
Councillor Anne Lloyd Jones
Councillor John Pughe Roberts

Co-opted members (non voting)

Officers
Gwern ap Rhisiart
Mair Huws

Rhodri Jones

Parch Nick Sissons
Eurfryn Davies
Gwawr Maelor Williams
Naomi Wood

Bethan Davies Jones
Eirian Bradley Roberts
Patrycja Bielak Smith
Edward Parri-Jones
Nathan Abrams

Mr Mohamed Arabi
Dr Sibani Roy

EAnss \Rebahtatfisgol Botwnnog)
Miriam Amlyn (Ysgol Eifionydd)
Heledd Owen (Ysgol Friars)

Eleri Moss (Ysgol y Moelwyn)
AMlaifiog| NDyerination

Mrs Miriam Amlyn

Mr Euron Hughes

awaiting nomination

Plaid Cymru
Plaid Cymru
Plaid Cymru
Plaid Cymru
Plaid Cymru
Independent
Independent

Head of Education Department

Assistant education resources officer and

SACRE clerk

Democratic Services officer

Page 15



3.3 SACRE meetings 2023-24

Dates of meetings may be obtained by contacting the SACRE Clerk. During 2023-2024 Gwynedd
SACRE met twice through Zoom:

21 November 2023
2 July 2024

Due to circumstances, the meeting to be held on 6 of February 2024 was cancelled.

The following matters were discussed and further details are provided in the minutes and the main body of the

report:

21 November 2023

It was confirmed that the then Head of Education has been in discussions with GWE to restore
support and it has been confirmed that Bethan James would be returning to that role. It was
reported that the support will not be at the same level as previously, but that Bethan James will
attend SACRE meetings and give a further half day of support, and as a starting point she would
give a presentation at the next meeting.

The Reverend Nick Sissons reported on the current Collective Worship Guidelines. He felt that
the current guidelines were outdated and needed significant Work. He suggested there was no
value in going through and modifying the existing document as wider issues needed attention,
particularly the need to review the legislation on collective worship. Following discussion it was
decided that SACRE Gwynedd write a letter to WASCRE and the national bodies of all churches
in Wales to enquire how they could be able to help move the matter forward.

4 July 2023

Councillor Menna Baines was re-elected as Chair and Clir Meryl Roberts as Vice-Chair.

Nia Elain Roberts, Llan Project School Pilgrimage Engagement Officer, reported. It has been
reported that the project receives the support of the Church in Wales Evangelism Fund for the
development of pilgrimage within the Diocese and the learning of the Welsh language. The
project had been funded for 7 years. One of the main aims of the project is to motivate teachers
to use the theme of 'pilgrimage' within their classwork as well as to promote religious history
and the Welsh language. It was stressed that this project was available to all schools, not just
church schools and all schools would have access to lesson packs, visits and presentations.

3.3.1 Gwynedd SACRE has affiliated with the Wales Association of SACREs and its members regularly attend

meetings held by WASACRE.

3.3.2 The following provide SACRE with professional support:

Gwern ap Rhisiart Head of Education Department
Mair Huws Assistant education improvement officer and SACRE clerk
Rhodri Jones Democratic Services Officer

Enquiries should be sent to the SACRE Clerk at the Education Department, Gwynedd Council, Caernarfon,

Gwynedd. LL55 1SH

3.3.3 The SACRE report was sent to the following organisations:

Electronic copies of the annual report were distributed to the following:

Page 16



e Department for Education and Skills, Welsh Government
e Head of Gwynedd’s Education Department

e Gwynedd Council Leader

e Wales Association of SACREs

e Gwynedd schools

A copy was distributed to:
e Members of Gwynedd SACRE

Page 17



Page 18



Agenda ltem 7

PRIFYSGOL

BANGOR

UNIVERSITY

Report on the teaching provision
of Religion, Values and Ethics
in Schools in Wales (April 2024)

Research By:

Dr Joshua Andrews

Dr Gareth Evans-Jones
Ms Rachel Healand-Sloan
and Prof Lucy Huskinson

Online accessible version: May 2024

Pége 18



CONTEXT AND AIMS

A central remit of the National Centre of Religious Education for Wales is to provide free
academic expertise and pedagogical support in the subjects of philosophy, religion, and
ethics to teachers and students from GSCE to Postgraduate Certificate of Education (PGCE)
levels through a variety of activities including workshops, revision sessions, and Continual
Professional Development (CPD) events. Since October 2022, the Centre has received a
steady stream of negative reports and feedback from primary and secondary teachers
across Wales over the implementation of the new curriculum for Religion, Values and Ethics
(RVE).

In Wales, the Curriculum and Assessment Act, which came into being in September 2022,
renamed ‘Religious Education’ (RE) to ‘Religion, Values and Ethics’ (RVE) with the stipulation
that it be a compulsory subject for all students aged 3 to 16. It was subsequently integrated
into the Humanities Area of Teaching and Learning.

To clarify the problematic issues received by the Centre and to ascertain potential remedies,
the Directors of the Centre, Dr Joshua Andrews, Dr Gareth Evans-Jones, and Prof Lucy
Huskinson, and a research assistant, Ms Rachel Healand-Sloan, conducted investigative
research using qualitative and quantitative questionnaires circulated to teachers of RVE
across Wales. Responses were anonymised. Responses were received from 58 schools
across 17 different Welsh counties and boroughs, and from primary and secondary schools,
special educational needs schools and those specialising in lifelong learning. 34 responded
through the medium of English and 24 through the medium of Welsh.

KEY FINDINGS

Findings revealed systematic challenges in the teaching of RVE in Wales, including issues of
legal compliance, with over half the schools in Wales are failing to provide the minimal legal
provision of RVE teaching across Key Stages 3 and 4, inadequate resources, and instructional
deficiencies.

AIMS OF THE QUESTIONNAIRE

The questionnaire sought to understand how educational institutions across Wales have
integrated RVE into their curriculum for Key Stages 1-3. Specifically, it sought to understand,
(1) how teachers perceive distinctions between RVE and RE, in terms of their respective
learning outcomes, skills-sets, diverse content, teaching methodologies, aims and
objectives; (2) the extent to which the updated curriculum incorporates a variety of
distinctive global religions, worldviews, and philosophies; (3) whether RVE is taught
independently as a standalone subject or as one of several subjects integrated into a
broader Humanities curriculum. Where RVE is taught as part of an integrated Humanities
curriculum, additional questions were asked to ascertain the time allocated to teaching RVE
compared to the other subjects taught alongside it, and whether there are variations in
staffing levels and training opportunities for RVE teachers compared to the other subjects.

Pége 19



The questionnaire also solicited information about the potential impact of introducing RVE
at Key Stage 3 on the provision of RE and Religious Studies (RS) at Key Stage 4.

PARTICIPANTS

Questionnaires targeted primary schools, secondary schools, and Special Educational Needs
(SEN) educational institutions throughout Wales, covering state schools and those with a
religious character, to capture a diverse range of perspectives and experiences. Because
responses from primary school educators were relatively few, this dataset was not included
in our analysis, but it was considered in our assessments of the wider context of the new
provision of RVE.

There were 43 respondents. These were teachers who taught in either secondary schools or
schools that taught Key Stage 3, such middle schools. 32.56% respondents taught in bi-
lingual schools, 30.23% in Welsh medium schools, and 37.21% were from English medium
schools.

Responses were received from teachers in the following counties/boroughs:

Anglesey
Bridgend

Cardiff
Carmarthen
Ceredigion
Conwy
Denbighshire
Flintshire
Glamorgan
Gwynedd

Neath Port Talbot
Newport
Pembrokeshire
Powys

Rhondda Cynon Taf
Swansea
Wrexham

Participants were asked to identify their teaching role. A variety of answers were given:

A newly qualified teacher (NQT)
Classroom teacher

Head of RVE

Head of Humanities

Senior Leadership Team

nge 20



As expected, the respondents represented teachers with a broad spectrum of teaching
experiences, spanning those who identified themselves as newly qualified teachers to those
who had been teaching for up to 36 years.

THE QUESTIONNAIRE

The questionnaire includes closed and open-ended questions to enable statistical insights
through the collation of quantitative data sets, and exploration of qualitative data that
provided us with a deeper, more nuanced understanding of the participant’s responses.
Participants had the option to complete it in English or Welsh.

Data Collection

Initial contact was established with school administrators, and their co-operation was
sought in circulating the questionnaire to relevant teaching staff. Informed ethical consent
was obtained from participating schools and teachers to ensure they understood the
purpose of the questionnaire, their rights to withdraw at any time, and the confidentiality
safeguarding measures in place. An open call was also issued on social media, and the
respondents were informed of their right to withdraw their answers at any time.
Participants were anonymised to encourage fuller and unrestricted responses. The
guestionnaire was administered electronically to allow for efficient data collection, reduced
environmental impact, and to allow teachers and institutions to respond at their
convenience within the prescribed deadline.

Data Analysis
Quantitative data from closed questions were processed using statistical software to
generate descriptive and inferential statistics, providing a quantitative overview of trends

and patterns. Open-ended responses were subject to thematic analysis, allowing for the
identification and exploration of recurring themes, opinions, and insights.

Pé\ge 21



FINDINGS
This section examines responses to the key questions in turn.

1. Is RVE at your institution a compulsory subject for all students between the ages of 3
and 16?

As noted, it is a legal requirement that RVE is taught in Welsh schools (Curriculum and
Assessment Act for Wales 2022). However, our findings reveal a significant proportion of
schools are not fulfilling this legal requirement. Only 17 (39.53%) confirmed that RVE was a
compulsory subject in their school, while 25 (58.14%) indicated it was not treated as such.
One teacher did not provide a response (2.33%).

Discussion

This disparity demonstrates a failure to comply with legal mandates but also suggests there
are significant and detrimental implications for the educational development of students.
The new curriculum for RVE places a strong emphasis on the need to understand diverse
religious beliefs, ethical principles, and societal values. By neglecting to include RVE as a
compulsory subject, schools are in effect deskilling their students from vital social skills and
denying them opportunities to understand their role as responsible citizens in an
increasingly multicultural society in Wales and beyond. RVE plays a crucial role in promoting
social cohesion and cultural understanding within Welsh society. Through the exploration of
different religious traditions, moral dilemmas, and ethical frameworks, students develop the
critical thinking and problem-solving skills required to navigate an increasingly diverse and
interconnected world. Failure to provide this educational foundation not only undermines
principles of inclusivity and tolerance but also perpetuates ignorance and prejudice.

The reluctance of schools to make RVE compulsory reflects a systemic problem that extends
beyond individual institutions. It underscores the need for greater accountability and
enforcement of educational standards to ensure all students have access to a
comprehensive and inclusive curriculum.

Some respondents also noted that their school has excluded RVE from their Key Stage 4
curricula, which indicates that some schools may fail to fulfil the legal obligation to teach
RVE until the end of Key Stage 4. This prompts the need to investigate the future of GCSE
gualifications in the subject area.

2. Which religions are studied as part of the new curriculum?

While the new curriculum framework aims to empower teachers to incorporate a broader
range of ethical and philosophical worldviews, it is evident that many schools are still
primarily focusing on the study of the traditional ‘big six’ religions (Christianity, Judaism,
Islam, Hinduism, Sikhism and Buddhism). Subsequently, these schools are delivering a RE
curriculum rather than embracing the rationale of the RVE curriculum.

Pége 22



The survey results reveal that the study of Christianity has a monopoly on religions studied,
with a sizeable 98% of respondents noting its inclusion within their curriculum. The study of
Judaism was included in 88% of curricula, and the study of Islam in 84% of curricula. These
results reflect traditional trends in Welsh religious education. While dharmic religions are
represented, such as Hinduism (72%), Buddhism (70%), and Sikhism (63%), the inclusion of
other minority religions, such as Paganism, Humanism, and Bahai is minimal, with only 5% of
teachers reporting their study.

The data indicates a lack of significant consideration given to secular and philosophical
viewpoints, with only 2% of teachers reporting the study of atheism and non-religious
beliefs. This suggests a missed opportunity for schools to diversify their curricula and
provide students with invaluable exposure to a broader spectrum of moral and
philosophical perspectives.

Discussion

The absence of specific worldviews relevant to local and regional areas of Wales, or those
related to staff specialisms is concerning. Despite the flexibility afforded by the new
curriculum framework, there is little evidence to suggest that schools are using this
opportunity to incorporate the diverse perspectives that may resonate more closely with
the lived experiences of their own students and/or with the expertise of their teaching staff.

Our findings highlight a significant gap between the objectives of the RVE curriculum and its
implementation in schools across Wales. Most schools appear to be maintaining a narrow
and limited view of religion, focusing only on traditional religions, while neglecting the
broader mandate of introducing students to a wide range of secular and philosophical
viewpoints. Moving forward, it is imperative for schools to embrace the principles of RVE by
diversifying their curricula to ensure that students are upskilled and equipped with a more
comprehensive understanding of ethics, values, and worldviews.

3. Are there resources available to assist schools to develop and deliver the new RVE
curriculum?

Only 18 (41.86%) respondents stated that resources were available to assist schools in
developing the new curriculum. 25 (58.14%) respondents indicated resources were severely
insufficient and that there were no readily available resources. It was noted that there is
only one official textbook and that is in English only.!

Discussion

Our findings reveal a concerning lack of support and guidance for teachers. The scarcity of
resources poses serious questions about the planning and implementation of the new

L Parry, L. and Hayes, J. (2022) Curriculum for Wales: Religion, Values and Ethics for 11-14
years, Hodder Education: London (ISBN-10: 1398348740; 232 pages).

nge 23



curriculum. Adequate teaching materials are fundamental to ensure adequate development
of the subject and its effective instruction within schools.

The fact that only one official RVE textbook has been published, and only in English, for
pupils aged 11-14, is wholly inadequate. Moreover, the focus of this handbook is
predominantly on different religions, and as such, it fails to address the wider remit and
principles of RVE. This is problematic, particularly when a teacher is attempting to plan for
its teaching alongside other subjects, such as History and Geography, as part of the mixed
Humanities curriculum.

The absence of a Welsh-language version of the textbook further exacerbates the issue and
raises significant concerns about the provision of Welsh-medium resources and attitudes
towards Welsh-medium education. Despite the legal parity of Welsh and English in Wales
since 2011, the failure to publish a Welsh version of this textbook simultaneously with the
English version suggests teaching and learning RVE in Welsh is of lesser value than itis in
English. Respondents have responded to the English-only textbook with frustration, with
one noting that they had personally contacted the publisher, Hodder Education, to request
permission to translate some parts of the book. Permission was denied. It has since come to
light that Hodder Education have no intention of translating this textbook in to the medium
of Welsh.

Despite these challenges, some positive examples of useful sources were mentioned by
respondents, notably, by respondents who were based in south-east and south-west regions
of Wales, where it was mentioned on several occasions that Swansea’s Standing Advisory
Council for RE (SACRE) has been consistent and clear in its guidelines for the

implementation of the RVE curriculum. Additionally, pedagogical resources that are
available on online platforms such as the NATRE website, Humanist websites, and RVE
Facebook groups were noted as offering some support to teachers who are navigating the
new curriculum.

4. Have the government’s guidelines? helped you to develop RVE in your school?

More than half of the respondents (23: 53.49%) expressed dissatisfaction with the Welsh
Parliament’s (WP) guidelines. These respondents found the guidelines ambiguous and
potentially misleading. Several noted the guidelines were vague, unclear, and open to
radically different interpretations, thereby suggesting the potential for radically different
RVE curricula being taught throughout schools in Wales. Some noted that they approach
their teaching of RVE as if it were still RE. Others noted they are developing their curriculum
to focus more on philosophy and less on religion.

Several respondents felt the terms ‘values’ and ‘ethics’ in RVE required clear definitions, and
guidance on the topics that ought to be included in the study of values and ethics. Some of

2The WP Guidelines are available at:
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2021-05/consultation-document-
curriculum-for-wales-religion-values-and-ethics-guidance.pdf

P;ge 24



these respondents felt this was of particularly concern for those teaching RVE in special
educational needs (SEN) schools.

One teacher acknowledged that the guidelines outlined at the end of the Welsh curriculum
document were useful “to some extent”.

Discussion

The WP’s failure to provide a coherent and cohesive vision for RVE has left teachers
struggling to interpret and implement the curriculum effectively. This lack of clarity results
in varying and contrasting interpretations, which has the potential to lead to disparities in
the quality and content of the subject across schools in Wales. This raises questions about
whether students across Wales are being adequately prepared for GCSE RE within their Key
Stage 3 curriculum, and whether schools are realistically addressing topics of ethics and
values in their curriculum or simply reverting to the older RE curriculum. Furthermore, the
lack of guidance for SEN schools underscores the need for further research and tailored
support in this area.

5. Have you had the opportunity for professional training to assist you with the new
curriculum?

Among the respondents, 24 (55.81%) indicated they had received some form of training,
while 19 (44.19%) reported they had not. A notable discrepancy emerged between English
medium and Welsh medium teachers, with a significantly higher proportion of Welsh
medium teachers noting they had not received any form of training.

Discussion

The lack of clarity on WP’s guidelines is compounded by the fact that relatively few RVE
teachers have received training for the new curriculum. There is an expectation that every
teacher should receive adequate training to manage the substantial changes in the
curriculum. The lack of training for Welsh-medium teachers is particularly concerning, and
this concern is exacerbated with the absence of the Welsh-medium textbook (see above).
The lack of Welsh-medium training for RVE undermines the principles of bilingual education
and risks alienating Welsh-speaking students both individually and by perpetuating linguistic
disparities within the educational system.

There were positive responses from respondents whose schools provided them with
training for the new curriculum. Specific initiatives were lauded. These include the efforts of
some individuals, such as Jennifer Harding-Richards, an RE Advisor and a member of the
SACRE, for Swansea, Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire who conducted evening training
sessions for teachers in schools across this region to explore different religions and world
views. Another initiative mentioned was that of Lat Blaylock, from RE Today, who hosts
training sessions for teachers, and a conference, StrictlyRE, both of which are targeted at
teachers across the UK and require payment to attend (£100+).

nge 25



One respondent mentioned that the Diocesan Education Department offered some training
sessions online (through TEAMS). It is unclear from their response what these involved.
Similarly, a respondent from Powys mentioned that educational trips and a working group
were available to them to help them tackle the new curriculum, but the details of these are
unclear. The initiatives mentioned suggest training opportunities are sporadic and
unavailable to many regions in Wales, unless individuals are willing and able to pay for the
opportunities available to them online, coming out of England.

It is important to note that the training sessions available to students in Swansea and
Carmarthenshire are held in the evenings and weekends. This required teachers to sacrifice
personal time, and it inevitably meant some teachers would not be able to attend.
Furthermore, these sessions rely on the goodwill of academics with expertise in philosophy,
religion, and ethics to contribute to the training sessions. Indeed, members from our Centre
have contributed to them.

Some respondents who noted that some training was given to them from within their own
institution, described sessions that were unhelpful. Others found them relatively helpful.
The consistency and effectiveness of training provided by schools varies substantially.

Given the comprehensive overhaul of the curriculum to include broader philosophical and
ethical perspectives, it is concerning that widespread training is not accessible to all RVE
teachers to ensure they feel adequately prepared to deliver the new curriculum. It is crucial
that gaps in training are addressed. Further research is required to identify the training
available for every region across Wales and the feasibility of its costs and timing of its
delivery.

6. Has the new curriculum for Wales benefited RVE?

25 (58.14%) respondents believe the new curriculum is beneficial in theory and could be
effective if carefully developed and applied. 17 (39.53%) stated that the new curriculum was
not beneficial, with several noting its lack of coherent vision. A significant number of those
who expressed dissatisfaction were from Welsh-medium schools, being 11 respondents.
One respondent chose not to answer this question.

Discussion

Respondents acknowledge the potential benefits of the curriculum’s broader scope with its
capacity for transformative education by encouraging students to explore diverse lived
experiences, various religious traditions, and philosophical perspectives, and to reflect more
deeply on ethical issues. But respondents also expressed concerns about the inconsistencies
and ambiguities that surround the implementation of RVE across schools in Wales. It was
noted by some that RVE does not have a coherent identity. This was mirrored in several
responses where teachers expressed confusion and difficulties in transitioning from
traditional RE curriculums to the broader, and more inclusive framework of RVE. The lack of
unified guidance and clarity from the Government on the differences between the two
subjects was noted again here by teachers as a key source of the problem.

nge 26



Ultimately, while teachers recognise the inherent value and potential of RVE, addressing the
current gaps in implementation and providing adequate support and guidance are crucial
steps towards realising its fuller benefits in Welsh education.

7. How many hours of curriculum time does RE/RVE currently receive in your school?

The hours allocated to the teaching of RVE varies significantly across schools. On average,
the time allocated to teaching RVE is one hour per week. However, varying allocations of
time were reported. Some respondents noted more favourable circumstances, such as two
hours per week, with one respondent reporting an allocation of five hours per week for Year
7 students, followed by two hours per week for students in Years 8 and 9. One respondent
noted that RVE was allotted only 15 hours per year as part of a mixed Humanities
curriculum.

Discussion

There is considerable disparity in the hours allocated for RVE across schools in Wales. This
reinforces inconsistencies in curriculum delivery and poses significant questions around
equal opportunities available to students studying RVE in Wales. Where the time allocated
to RVE is severely limited and restricted, students are unlikely to be exposed to the diversity
of religious perspectives and ethical dilemmas required for the RVE curriculum, and, by the
same token, it is likely to lead to superficial understandings and to skewed impressions of
the values adopted within society and those upheld in other cultures. A reduction in time-
allocation could therefore inadvertently undermine and damage the intended outcomes of
the new curriculum.

One respondent highlighted that RVE is taught for only 15 hours per year as part of a mixed
Humanities curriculum. This is alarming, since Humanities subjects are collectively assigned
4 hours a week. This means that other subject areas heavily prioritised to the detriment of
RVE.

Further research needs to be undertaken to understand whether the shift from a
standalone RE curriculum to its integration into a broader Humanities framework has had a
negative impact on the aims and objectives and teaching quality of RVE, and, by extension, a
reduction in religious literacy, problem-solving skills, critical skills of analysis, ethical
reasoning, and moral understanding among school leavers in Wales.

8. Does RVE receive the same amount of time as the old curriculum for RE in Wales?
26 (60.47%) respondents reported that RVE is assigned the same or similar hours as RE had
been prior to the transition to the new curriculum. 15 (34.88%) respondents noted it has

been assigned fewer hours. 2 did not respond. Two respondents noted that their schools
have chosen either to reduce RVE/RE at Key Stage 4 or entirely remove it.

10
Page 27



Discussion

The reduction of RVE provision compared to its older counterpart, RE, is widespread. The
removal or reduction of RVE from Key Stage 4 is alarming in two respects. First, it directly
contravenes the legal requirement that RVE is taught to all students up to the age of 16.
Some schools are thereby failing in their legal obligation to provide a comprehensive
education to their students by failing to teach them essential content and skills related to
inclusivity and tolerance. Second, it deprives students of the opportunity to develop life
skills that are crucial for personal and social development.

9. Does RVE need more curriculum time?

32 (74.42%) respondents believe RVE requires a greater allocation of taught hours in the
curriculum to ensure it is properly taught to allow students sufficient time to learn its
content and skills.

Comments from respondents include:

“We get half the time that History and Geography do in year 7 and 8 and even less in year 9.
Yet we are expected to make the same level of progress with the students."

“The only other subjects allocated such a small amount of time are the Arts. As an academic
subject RVE should receive similar hours as the other humanities."

"RVE is one of the most relevant subjects we teach students as they will have to understand
religion, ethics and philosophy when they go into the real world. Yet despite dealing with
such important things, it is given less time than the other humanities."

Discussion

The call for increased time allocation to RVE highlights a perceived deficiency in the current
curriculum structure compared to other subjects in the Humanities curriculum. Despite the
legal mandate to teach RVE as a compulsory subject, our research suggests that schools may
be struggling to integrate it effectively within existing schedules and priorities. This may be
exacerbated by competing demands to teach other subjects, by limited resources for RVE,
and insufficient training and support for RVE teachers.

Comments from teachers suggest that the widespread desire for more time allocated to RVE
may reflect broader perceptions about the increasing significance of RVE in society today, to
equip students with the skills required to navigate real-world challenges, complex moral and
ethical dilemmas, and to engage constructively with diverse communities.

One respondent noted, "RVE doesn't have a specified 5%, not in the guidance on Hwb."3

This underscores the lack of clear guidelines given to required time allocation for the

3 Hwb: the online government repository of resources to support the Curriculum for Wales:
https://hwb.gov.wales/resources.

11
Page 28



subject, and this, in turn, hampers efforts to situate RVE fairly and sufficiently within the
curriculum.

10. Is RE/RVE a standalone subject or part of the Humanities curriculum?

25 (58.14%) respondents reported that RVE is integrated into a mixed Humanities
curriculum at their school, and 18 (41.86%) respondents stated it is taught as a standalone
subject.

Discussion

Teaching RVE as part of a mixed Humanities curriculum suggests an interdisciplinary
approach, where themes of religion, values, and ethics are interwoven with other subjects
such as history, geography, and social studies. This approach has the potential to provide
students with a more holistic understanding of how religious beliefs and ethical principles
intersect with broader societal issues. By integrating RVE into the humanities curriculum,
schools may foster a deeper appreciation for the interconnectedness of different cultural
perspectives and moral frameworks.

However, the data we have acquired from the survey suggests this integrative and holistic
approach is not being adopted, but, rather, that RVE is side-lined with focus given to the
teaching to other subjects represented in the mixed Humanities curriculum. In addition to
the ease with which subjects can be side-lined in favour of others, the mixed Humanities
approach increases the likelihood that students are being taught by someone who has no
specialism in one or more of the subjects studied. This means the depth and quality of the
instruction and education may be compromised.

Teaching RVE as a standalone subject offers the advantage of dedicated time and focus
specifically on religious education, values, and ethics, and opportunities for deeper, more
meaningful discussions and critical reflections on complex issues related to morality,
identity, and belief. Both approaches have their merits and drawbacks, and the decision to
teach RVE within a mixed Humanities curriculum or as a standalone subject will vary
depending on factors such as school resources, curriculum priorities, and pedagogical
preferences. Regardless of the approach taken, it is imperative that RVE is taught
comprehensively.

The next three questions (10b-10d) sought to provide clarity into the positive and negative
aspects to these different approaches to teaching RVE, and whether teaching RVE as part of
an integrative humanities curriculum puts severe constraints on teaching it effectively, in
terms of time allocated and lack of expertise to teach it.

10b. If RVE is taught as part of the humanities curriculum, does it receive the same
amount of time as other Humanities subjects?

65% of the respondents (27 respondents) teach RVE as part of a mixed Humanities

curriculum. Of this representative group, 12 respondents (27.91%) indicated that RVE does
not receive the same amount of time as other Humanities subjects, whilst 16 (37.21%)

12
Page 29



stated the subject was allocated equal time. 3 respondents provided further details on how
RVE features within their Humanities curricula as follows. 1 respondent noted that while
History and Geography receive three hours per week, RVE only receives two hours per
fortnight. Another indicated that History and Geography receive a total of 70 hours of time
each for students in Years 7 and 8, while RVE receives only 15 hours within the same
timeframe. The third respondent mentioned they are allowed to teach RVE for just half the
time allocated to History and Geography for students in Years 7 and 8, with a further
reduction to 1 hour every fortnight for students in Year 9.

Discussion

Rates in response were split between 10b and 10c. Responses to 10b confirm that there is a
substantial disparity between time allocated to RVE compared to other Humanities subjects
and responses provide some insight into the dissatisfaction teachers feel about the
disparity. Responses to this question highlight the importance of the teacher’s feelings
about their subject expertise and confidence in their ability to shape the delivery of RVE.
One respondent noted that the allocation of time for RVE within the Humanities curriculum
depends on the teacher’s own proficiency and enthusiasm for teaching the theme of a unit.
This indicates potentially substantial variations in the quality and consistency of RVE
instruction across classrooms and raises concerns about the educational experience and
outcomes for students.

10c. If RVE is taught as an independent subject, does it receive the same amount of
curriculum time as other Humanities subjects?

One respondent noted that RVE as a standalone subject receives 2 hours every other week,
compared to 3 hours per week for the standalone subjects of History and Geography.
Another respondent noted that RVE receives 1 hour less per fortnight compared to other
Humanities subjects and that RVE is not included or mentioned in Year 6 induction days.
Several respondents mentioned that RVE receives less teaching time in Years 8 and 9 as a
standalone subject compared to History and Geography. Some respondents simply stated
"less," indicating a general perception or awareness of RVE receiving less attention or fewer
resources compared to other standalone Humanities subjects. One respondent noted that
Geography and History both receive double the instructional time of Religion and Ethics in
Year 9 when taught as standalone subjects. Some respondents expressed uncertainty about
the differences in teaching time between RVE and other Humanities subjects when taught
independently of each other. Two respondents note that RVE receives an hour less per
week, highlighting there has been a specific reduction in time assigned to RVE compared to
other standalone subjects. One respondent noted that there is no difference in teaching
time for Year 8 students when RVE is taught as a standalone subject.

Discussion
Like responses for 10b, the information gleaned here confirms the disparities between time

allocated to RVE compared to other Humanities subjects and the dissatisfaction teachers
feel about this. The fact that RVE is not included or mentioned in Year 6 induction days in

13
Page 30



one school suggests that RVE is not receiving the same or similar levels of emphasis or
consideration as other subjects during key transitional periods in the education of their
students.

10d. Does your school provide training for teachers who do not specialize in subjects to
ensure that they can provide the best education for Humanities?

9 (20.93%) respondents said their schools provided training for Humanities teachers who
were non-specialists in their Humanities subject. 33 (76.74%) respondents stated that there
were no training opportunities available to non-specialists in humanities subjects. One
noted that their Head of Department ensured training in History and Geography but not in
RVE, because the subject is, to quote, “just opinion, anyway”. One respondent mentioned
the necessity for History teachers to step in and teach RVE lessons due to staffing shortages.

Discussion

It is evident from comments of respondents that there is a palpable concern from teachers
about the lack of subject expertise among teachers who are tasked with delivering RVE and
other Humanities subjects. Some respondents highlighted the substantial differences in
content and skills subjects of RVE, History, and Geography, and emphasized the need for
specialised training to ensure teachers are properly equipped to manage their differences
sufficiently.

Our research highlights the need to prioritise the training of non-specialist teachers tasked
with teaching RVE and other Humanities subjects to ensure the integrity of the curriculum is
not jeopardised. It is also clear that there needs to be greater recognition of the unique
challenges and complexities of teaching RVE to ensure training is appropriately tailored to
its pedagogical requirements.

14
Page 31



SUMMARY OF KEY FINDINGS

Responses from the survey expose various challenges and opportunities with the teaching
of Religion, Values and Ethics (RVE) in Welsh schools. Key points underscore the need for
comprehensive support, clearer guidance, and ongoing investment to ensure its successful
integration into the curriculum. Immediately following the survey, the Centre has received
numerous correspondences from teachers who are keen to make additional comments or to
express their concerns more forcibly. Below is a summary of key points from the survey and
points emphasised within subsidiary correspondence from teachers.

Perception of RVE as a pointless and undervalued subject. RVE tends to be viewed by
schools as a mere administrative ‘tick box’ requirement, rather than an opportunity for
transformative education.

Need for training and investment. This includes financial investment and professional
development opportunities to upskill teachers and to improve levels of confidence and
competence in delivering RVE sufficiently.

Clarity and consistency in the curriculum. There is confusion among teachers and schools
about expectations placed on them for teaching the main religions in Key Stage 3, and that
the current level of freedom granted to schools on shaping the RVE curriculum can lead to
inconsistent provision, and, by extension, detrimentally harm their students’ preparations
for, and performance in GCSE exams.

Availability of resources and confidence to teach. A recurring theme of our research is the
lack of confidence among teachers in delivering sufficient RVE lessons, due to inadequate
resources, textbooks, general support and guidance.

Workload and Staffing Issues. There are considerable staffing challenges, with some schools
lacking teachers with specialism in RVE, or requiring them to teach multiple subjects. This
raises concerns about the quality and consistency of RVE provision across schools in Wales.

Unclear government policies. There is a call from teachers and schools for clear educational
policies to protect the status of RVE within mixed humanities curricula, and for greater
guidance and support from Government bodies to ensure consistency and coherence in RVE
provision.

Assessment and Progression. Linked to issues of ambiguity around the scope and focus of
the RVE curriculum, are questions raised by teachers about how best to assess student
progression across the RVE curriculum in line with principles of progression and ‘what
matters’ statements. There is a desire for guidance on cross-curricula links and effective
assessment methods.

Professional learning and development opportunities. Teachers recognise the need for
ongoing professional development to deepen their knowledge and skills in teaching religious
and non-religious beliefs.

15
Page 32



Update the curriculum to keep it relevant. There is an expressed need to ensure the RVE
curriculum is continually reviewed and updated to ensure its relevance and efficacy in
meeting students' own expectations, interests, and needs. This includes providing greater
context to the topics taught and avoiding unnecessary stretching the content to incorporate
irrelevant facts and information.

Positive impact of RVE. Despite the challenges of teaching RVE, several respondents have
noted that the curriculum change from RE to RVE has had a positive impact on their student
culture and to the teaching and learning environments within their schools.

16
Page 33



CONCLUSION

The discrepancy between legal mandates for the teaching of RVE as a compulsory subject in
Wales and the actual implementation of this teaching underscores a systemic failure
throughout Welsh schools to adhere to the foundational principles of the new curriculum.
The disconnection between government policy and educational practice raises fundamental
guestions about accountability and the enforcement of educational standards.

Overwhelming pressure on teachers, compounded by a substantial and unwarranted lack of
resources and guidance on RVE, suggests that the new curriculum has been hastily arranged
and implemented irresponsibly in Welsh schools without consideration and foresight into
the inevitable problems that have arisen for schools, teachers, and students alike. While
there are some ‘good news’ stories coming out of regions in the South East and the South
West of Wales, the overall position suggests that most students are severely disadvantaged
by current RVE education practices and the subject is unduly compromised.

The lack of adequate training for non-specialist teachers tasked with delivering RVE
exacerbates concerns over the quality and consistency of RVE across Welsh schools. The
dearth of RVE subject expertise among teachers, coupled with staffing shortages, and
limited training opportunities, poses significant challenges to the successful implementation
of the RVE curriculum. Without sufficient support and resources, teachers may continue to
struggle to navigate the complexities of teaching RVE effectively, and their students’
performance inevitably suffers as a result.

The narrow focus given to the study of traditional religions at the expense of diverse ethical
and philosophical worldviews represents a missed opportunity to foster inclusivity and
cultural understanding within the curriculum. While the framework for the new curriculum
aims to broaden the scope of religious education and to promote skills of analysis and
critical thinking, the persistent emphasis on the ‘big six’ religions fails to move beyond the
older RE curriculum, and reflects a tired and sterile approach that inadequately captures the
diversity of contemporary society.

These failings call for urgent action to address the status quo. Clear and unambiguous
guidelines, comprehensive and freely accessible resources, and robust support mechanisms
are essential to ensure the successful implementation of the RVE curriculum.

While most teachers appear to laud the transition from RE to RVE and cite as key the social
importance and timely relevance of its subject matter, a prevailing sentiment of
apprehension permeates the comments made by teachers throughout the survey, and this
continues in the steady stream of correspondence we continue to receive in the Centre
from teachers of RVE since the adoption of the new curriculum in Wales.

Proactive measures and initiatives, including targeted professional development, revisions
to the curriculum, and enhanced support mechanisms, are essential to ensure the successful
implementation of the RVE curriculum, and by extension, to realise the potentials of RVE as
a transformative force in Welsh education.

17
Page 34



RECOMMENDATIONS
We make the following recommendations.
Government clarity in the use of terminology.

The terms, 'Religion’, ‘Values’, and ‘Ethics', have caused substantial confusion for teachers,
especially with regards to the definition of 'Values' within this framework. Teachers urgently
require explicit guidance from the WP to elucidate their meanings, especially the nuanced
distinctions between 'Ethics' and 'Values'. Are ‘Ethics’ and ‘Values’ meant to be treated
synonymously or are they intended to convey distinct meanings within the RVE curriculum?
Similarly, are ‘Values’ in ‘RVE’ linked to specific kinds of values, akin, perhaps to the 'British
Values' initiative in England? Clarity on the definition and meaning of ‘Religion’, ‘Values’,
and ‘Ethics’, by explaining their purpose, significance, and alighment with overarching
educational objectives is crucial to ensure a uniform understanding across educational
institutions and to prevent incongruities in the educational values imparted by different
schools in Wales.

Government guidance on content.

While teachers generally appear optimistic about the opportunities that RVE provides for
integrating philosophical and ethical worldviews into their curricula, we have identified that
many are unable to recognise and select suitable philosophical or ethical theories to
incorporate into their teaching plans.

The current literature provided by the WP lacks comprehensive guidance on what
constitutes an appropriate philosophical or ethical worldview, offering only limited
examples, such as pacifism and ethical veganism. This has led several teachers and schools
to hesitate in and sometimes to refrain from adapting their curriculum and choosing instead
to revert to the RE curriculum instead of diversifying their curriculum to include a broader
spectrum of religious and secular worldviews.

There is a pressing need for clearer guidance on the types of philosophical and ethical
worldviews that could be seamlessly integrated into the curriculum. This needs to be
supplemented with sample schemes of work circulated to all RVE teachers that serve as
practical examples (either for direct implementation into their teaching or as sources of
inspiration) that demonstrate effective ways to incorporate philosophical and ethical
worldviews into an RVE curriculum.

Through the National Centre for Religious Education, we are well positioned to develop
these schemes of work, and to that end, we invite the WP to collaborate with us.

Formally structuring the integrated/mixed Humanities curriculum, Key Stage 3.
Our research has identified that the adoption of a mixed or integrated humanities approach

to the teaching of RVE has led to the distinct marginalisation of RVE within the curriculum,
with its other subjects (notably, History and Geography) receiving disproportionately more

18
Page 35



allocated time. While this is not an issue for all schools in Wales, it is apparent that a
substantially high percentage of schools encounter significant challenges in delivering a
Humanities curriculum that affords RVE equal time and space alongside other Humanities
subjects. The suppression of RVE in the humanities curriculum risks stultifying essential
social and analytical skills in students, skills that are vital for academic, social, and personal
growth.

It is recommended that the impact of mixed Humanities curricula on GCSE results and A-
level results is identified. Our research suggests that a great many students will be taught
Key Stage 3 RVE by teachers who specialise in History or Geography, and who lack specialist
RVE knowledge. There is a distinct probability that these students may not develop the
requisite skills to progress to GCSE RS or A-level RS. By the same token, if these teachers fail
to instil enthusiasm for RVE in their students, it could lead to a decline in students opting to
take RS at the examination level. Furthermore, given the sensitive nature of some RVE
topics, there is a risk that these teachers could inadvertently offend religious groups and
compromise the integrity of the subject by presenting ideas inaccurately or introducing
inappropriate tasks within their teaching.

Clear guidelines are required to safeguard RVE across educational settings. Given the pivotal
role of RVE for preparing students for real life and work within multicultural Wales and
beyond, there is strong argument for RVE to be taught only as a distinct and standalone
subject. However, if the WAG seeks to continue to allow for the inclusion of RVE in mixed
Humanities curriculums, it ought to provide explicit guidelines that specify the structure of
these curricula to ensure equitable time is allocated for each subject. Furthermore, schools
require clear guidance on whether mixed Humanities curricula should be delivered through
distinct units, with each focussed on one Humanities subject, or whether a thematic
approach ought to be adopted, where a specific theme is explored from different
perspectives garnered from each Humanities subject.

We urge the WP to ensure that Estyn, the education inspectorate for Wales, reviews the
delivery of RVE in all schools and establishes a mandate that ensures RVE is not side-lined
within the school curriculum. We strongly recommend the WP collaborate with the National
Centre for Religious Education to formulate a clear and comprehensive set of guidelines that
positions RVE properly, fairly, and effectively within curricula. These guidelines will
emphasise the minimum time requirements assigned to RVE across all Key Stages.

The provision of free and easily accessible sessions of Continuing Professional
Development (CPD) for RVE teachers and non-specialist teachers tasked with teaching
RVE.

The teaching of RVE by teachers who have no specialism in the subject areas is concerning,
especially when the sensitive nature of its subject matter is considered and the prospect
that many non-specialist teachers may inadvertently misrepresent and potentially offend
students and others with their lack of knowledge of religious and philosophical ideas,
beliefs, and viewpoints. Furthermore, the skills of critical analysis and reflection that RVE
teaches requires a degree of sophistication and proficiency that non-specialist teachers may

19
Page 36



find challenging. This becomes especially problematic when preparing students for the
demands of the GSCE examination in the subject.

Correspondence to our Centre by teachers indicate that the mixed Humanities approach to
RVE is starting to impact detrimentally on the professional development of associate
teachers, by preventing them from completing their PGCEs due to a lack of opportunities to
teach RVE during placements.

Given these concerns, we strongly recommend that the WP discourages secondary schools
from adopting a mixed Humanities curriculum at Key Stage 3. An alternative solution would
be for the Government to work with the National Centre for Religious Education to establish
Continuing Professional Development (CPD) programmes that are tailored to the needs of
non-specialist teachers tasked with teaching RVE. These programmes would provide
accessible online training at no cost to schools across Wales.

Online CPD sessions are currently available to teachers with specialism in RVE, but these are
expensive, and available only in English and not in Welsh. CPD sessions will need to acquaint
current RVE teachers with a diverse array of philosophical and ethical worldviews suitable
for inclusion in the new RVE curriculum. They are vital to ensuring teachers possess the
requisite subject knowledge to deliver these aspects of RVE meaningfully and accurately.
They can help to install confidence in teachers to teach these subjects and help them to
avoid common misrepresentation of diverse worldviews. We are well positioned to provide
CPD opportunities to ensure the effective implementation of RVE in schools by specialist
RVE and non-specialist RVE teachers alike.

Allocation of RVE pedagogical resources.

Our research highlights substantial challenges faced by schools and teachers to identify and
access helpful pedagogical resources to aid their teaching of RVE. This is felt most viscerally
in Welsh-medium schools where resources are scant, compared to English-medium schools
which benefit from resources published in RE Today and CPD training sessions (with the
caveat that RE Today is accessible only to members of the National Association of Teachers
of Religious Education (NATRE), and CPD training sessions are often at personal financial
cost). The disparity in resources available in English and Welsh has implications for the
development of curricula. While some English- medium schools have managed to diversify
their curriculums to encompass religious, spiritual, and philosophical world views that had
not previously been included in their curricula, Welsh-medium teachers predominantly
maintain curricula that mirror the former RE curricula, by focussing on the six major world
religions.

To meet these challenges, the National Centre for Religious Education is committed to
providing a range of free bilingual resources, including schemes of work, media resources,
and CPD opportunities for all schools in Wales. But the Centre requires collaboration with
the Welsh Assembly Government to acquire greater clarity on its vision for RVE. This will
ensure the resources produced by the Centre align with the Government’s goals.

20
Page 37



Retention of RVE teachers in Wales.

Our Centre has received worrying correspondence from RVE/RE teachers that explain how
the introduction of the mixed Humanities approach in Key Stage 3 has caused them, or their
colleagues, to leave their schools in Wales to find teaching posts in RE in England. The
common reports and stories we hear in these cases are about their frustration with the
marginalisation of RVE in the humanities mixed curriculum adopted by their schools, and
how they found themselves, consequently, having to teach History and Geography
instead—subjects that they were not sufficiently qualified to teach and felt little enthusiasm
for.

It is a cause for great concern if these examples reflect an increasing national trend of RVE
teachers relocating to England. This would inevitably exacerbate the shortage of quality
teaching of RVE in Wales. The concern is made more pressing when one considers the fact
that bursaries of up to £10,000 are now available for those who wish to train as an RE
teacher in England, while no such bursaries are available to trainee teachers in Wales. It is
probable that more graduates from Wales will opt to enrol in PGCE programmes in England.

While it may not be possible for the Welsh Assembly Government to offer competing
bursaries for PGCE RVE/RE to ensure the good quality trainee teachers are kept in Wales,
the Government can begin to reduce the detrimental impacts on RVE in secondary schools
by utilizing the recommended strategies we outline in this report.

Clear KS4 Guidelines.

Our research reveals that a substantial number of schools have either eliminated or
significantly reduced mandatory Key Stage 4 provision for RVE/RE. This decision will
inevitably hasten declining numbers of students in Wales who enrol in GCSE Religious
Studies (RS). An additional obstacle that will likely contribute to this decline is to the recent
decision to eradicate from September 2025 short course GCSEs in the subject. This means
that there will no longer be accredited courses in the subject area that can be completed by
schools within the time previously allocated to Key Stage 4 RE/RS of one hour per week.
While the New Curriculum for Wales removes the legal requirement for schools to teach
RVE/RE/RS up to the age of 18, there is an unequivocal legal obligation for secondary
schools to provide RVE/RE/RS to students up to the age of 16.

We urge the WP to enforce the compulsory nature of RVE/RE/RS for all students up to the
age of 16, by actively promoting and encouraging secondary schools to invite students to
engage in GCSE courses in Religious Studies, and by ensuring that Estyn, the Education
Inspectorate for Wales, is diligent in its monitoring of RVE/RE/RS provision at Key Stages 3
and 4 during its inspections. Schools failing to meet requirements for delivering RVE/RE/RS
across Key Stages 3 and 4, should face due consequences.

Revise the existing proposals to change GCSE Religious Studies (RS).

We have profound reservations about the structure of the current GCSE Religious Studies
curriculum, which came into being in 2017, and the nature of proposed changes to it. We

21
Page 38



strongly urge that the following considerations are reviewed before the GCSE curriculum is
changed. Prior to 2017, the previous incarnation of the GCSE RS adopted a thematic
approach, which lent a dynamic quality and flexibility to its structure. By contrast, the
structure of the current curriculum is rigid and unnaturally separates religion from
philosophy and ethics. The current curriculum comprises two units that examine the beliefs
and practices of two religions, and two units that examine the philosophical and ethical
teachings of two religions in relation to a specific theme. While the current curriculum
encourages academic rigour by fostering skills of analysis and extended writing, it falls short
in its seamless integration of religious beliefs and practices with broader philosophical and
moral considerations and contemporary social issues to which students can relate. It is
perhaps unsurprising that the rigid and abstract structure of the current GCSE has coincided
with a notable decline in students sitting RS at GCSE and A-level.

We have reviewed with interests the proposals to revise the current GCSE in Religious
Studies. We had hoped there would be a return to a thematic approach to encourage
students’ meaningful reflection on religious beliefs in connection to philosophical and
ethical issues while maintaining its rigorous academic skills. We are disappointed to see the
proposals seek to maintain the rigid structure of the current curriculum.

We advocate for the renaming of the GSCE to ‘Religion, Values and Ethics’ to reflect its
content more accurately and to provide a consistent pedagogical narrative across the
student’s educational experience, given that up to the point of taking the GCSE, students
have only encountered RVE in primary school and at Key Stage 3. And we urge the WP to
reconsider the proposed changes and are keen to collaborate to develop an approach that
fosters student engagement with the ever-evolving educational needs and interests of new
student cohorts, while upholding the integrity of the subject.

Final words: the need to look forward.

The new curriculum for Wales holds immense potential for Religious Values and Ethics
(RVE), offering teachers the flexibility to craft meaningful schemes of work that familiarise
students with diverse religious, philosophical, and moral beliefs within Wales and beyond. It
stands as an opportunity to cultivate cultural awareness, challenge stereotypes, and nurture
critically thinking and informed global citizens. RVE, under the new curriculum, can
empower students to build strong academic foundations, to analyse and evaluate evidence,
to formulate opinions grounded in rational arguments, and to develop informed and more
objective perspectives, and to cultivate social awareness, respect, and empathy.

The current trajectory for RVE, however, is regressive and departs significantly from its
potential. The National Centre for Religious Education is keen to work closely with the
Welsh Assembly Government to curtail this downward trajectory and backward-looking
approach and to secure the potentially bright future of RVE for Wales. To that end, the
Centre advocates the need for further research and investigation into the issues outlined in
this report.

22
Page 39



There is currently insufficient data regarding the implementation of RVE in primary and SEN
environments. While data has been processed from 43 teachers of Key Stage 3 throughout
Wales, the Centre intends to expand its investigation through its network of schools to

involve more secondary schools. This will lend greater clarity into the emerging issues we
have identified in this report.

23
Page 40



Genedlaethol
Addysg
Grefyddol

‘;rjglr
Canolfan ) “
S

Cymru

_—

(

Dr Gareth Evans-Jones

ncrew@bangor.ac.uk

g.evans-jones@bangor.ac.uk

v

N GENED g

ADDYSG GREFYDDOL CYMRU
NATIONAL CENTRE OF

LIGIOUS EDUCATION FOR WALES




oy abed

Cyd-destun

* Ail-lansiwyd y Ganolfan yn Awst 2023, yn Eisteddfod
Genedlaethol Llyn ac Eifionydd.

« Siaradwyr yn cynnwys: Modlen Lynch, Kristoffer
Hughes a Hanan Issa.

« Amcan Canolfan Genedlaethol Addysg Grefyddol
Cymru (CGAGC) yw hybu astudiaeth, gwybodaeth ac
ymwybyddiaeth o'r amrywiaeth o draddodiadau
crefyddol, gwerthoedd a thraddodiadau athronyddol
sy'n bodoli yng Nghymru a’r byd ehangach.

CANOLFAN GENEDLAETHOL
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION FOR WALES



Gwaith dros y flwyddyn
ddiwethaf

« Sesiynau Adolygu Lefel A: Trefnwyd sesiwn
adolygu Lefel A mewnol i fyfyrwyr Ynys Mon a
Gwynedd, a sesiynau i fyfyrwyr Sir Gaerfyrddin yng
Ngholeg Sir Gar.

* Sesiynau Adolygu Ar-lein: Cynhaliwyd pythefnos

o sesiynau adolygu Lefel A ar-lein, gan gwmpasu
24 sesiwn ar Athroniaeth, Moeseg a Bwdhaeth.

v abed




Gy abed

Gwaith dros y flwyddyn
ddiwethaf

« Hyfforddiant DPP: Darparodd hyfforddiant DPP i
athrawon ar addysgu Bwdhaeth a Hindwaeth.

» Sesiynau Ar-lein: Cynhelir sesiynau ar-lein o fis Hydref
| fis lonawr ar gyfer myfyrwyr ac athrawon TGAU a
Safon Uwch, gan archwilio perthnasedd Athroniaeth,
Moeseg a Chrefydd yn y gymdeithas gyfoes.

» Ysgol Haf: Cynhaliodd ysgol haf ar-lein ym mis
Gorffennaf gyda 15 o ddarlithoedd i gyflwyno myfyrwyr |
bynciau lefel prifysgol mewn athroniaeth, moeseg, a
chrefydd.

CANOLFAN GENEDLAETHOL
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION FOR WALES



Gwaith dros y flwyddyn
ddiwethaf

 Addysgeg yr Holocost: Cynnal panel ar
addysgeg yr Holocost a threfnu sgwrs ar-lein gan
un o oroeswyr yr Holocost ar gyfer ysgolion
uwchradd.

» Sgyrsiau arbennig: Nerys Siddall (Mary Jones) a
Hanan Issa (Bardd Cenedlaethol Cymru).

o abed




Gwaith dros y flwyddyn
ddiwethaf

 Adnoddau Addysgiadol: Heddwch yn ein
Haddysg.

* Blychau Arteffact: Wedi creu 10 blwch arteffactau
crefydd-benodol ar gyfer addysgu prif grefyddau'r
byd, sydd ar gael i'w benthyca i ysgolion.

/v abed




GOFFAU'R HOLOGOST R
MEWN OES DDIGIDOL NENTRY

Ddydd lau 25 lonawr 2024 am 12:00
drwy gyfrwng Zoom

Ymunwch a'r panel trafod yma a
drefnwyd gan Ganolfan Addysg
Grefyddol Cymru wrth iddynt

RATTEEW DOSWELL & SNTONT ROWLEND

sgwrsio am y posibiliadau a'r CARDIFF F_'

UMIVERSITY

heriau y mae technoleg yn eu PRIFYSGOL

: ! G¥RDY®  ~BAN
cynnig wrth goffau'r Holocost ac

addysgu cenedlaethau newydd.

Siaradwyr:

Dr Matthew Boswell, Dr Joshua
Andrews, Ms Rachel Hall, Ms Esther
Evans, a Dr Gareth Evans-Jones.

MARY Yn 1800, a

hithau'n 15 oed,

JONES cerddodd

Mary Jones 26 milltir

1 Mawrth 2024 iI'r Bala i brynu copi o’r
Beibl. Cafodd y daith

honno ddylanwad

am 11:00

dros Zoom pellgyrhaeddol hyd

| ddathlu Dydd Gwyl Ddewi heddiw!

ac i nodi dechrau Mis Hanes
Merched, bydd

Nerys Siddall, Rheolwraig

Canolfan Byd Mary Jones, yn
rhoi sgwrs am fywyd a
phwysigrwydd Mary Jones
i'n hanes a’n cymdeithas.

'3 LG Digwyddiad am ddim ond bydd
CANOLFAN GENEDLAETHOL B A N G O R angen CcfrEStru

ADDYSG GREFYDDOL CYMRU lINI‘II | R'\l]-'r -
o Cynhelir drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg

A
bl

3




NOSON YNG
NGHWMNI
HANAN ISSA

Nos Fawrth 12fed o
Fawrth 2024

7pm dros Zoom

B %,

HFWHM24
Mis Hanes Merched

Ymunwch a ni wrth inni
fwynhau noson o drafod
gyda Bardd Cenedlaethol
Cymru a Chymrawd
Anrhydeddus cyfredol
Canolfan Genedlaethol
Addysg Grefyddol Cymru,

| Hanan Issa, wrth iddi
. drafod ei gwaith, ei

hysbrydoliaeth, a’i
dylanwadau amrywiol; a
bydd Hanan yn darllen
rhai o’i gweithiau.

Cofrestrwch isod neu drwy sganio’r
cod QR

e BANGOR O

Sesiynau adolygu Addysg
Grefyddol am ddim

2-4 Ebrill /
8-11 Ebrill /

Cofrestrwch am ddim drwy ddilyn y
ddolen sydd gyda’r post hwn.



0G abed




“Ydym ni'n
byw mewn
cymdeithas
oddefgar?”

UNIVERSITY

Bydd Dr Gareth Evans-Jones

(un o gyfarwyddwyr Canolfan
Genedlaethol Addysg Grefyddol
Cymru) yn holi Sién Melangell
Dafydd, Malachy Owain Edwards a
Kayley Roberts i ba raddau mae ein
cymdeithas yn derbyn amrywiaeth
grefyddol, diwylliannol a rhyweddol.

Lle?

Stondin Prifysgol Bangor
Eisteddfod Genedlaethol Rhondda
Cynon Taf
Pryd?

Dydd Mawrth 6 Awst: 14:00-14:45




Canolfan Genedlaethol Addysg Grefyddol Cymru
ac Athroniaeth, Moeseg a Chrefydd, Prifysgol Bangor

EARBLFAN AENEELATFREL
ADOYES BEETNEREL CYHEN
WATPEMAL EEMINE DF
Ehskiaah §BUEATION P08 MALIT

Canolfan Genedlaethol Addysg Grefyddol
Cymru yn penodi ei Llysgennad p
Myfyrwyr cyntaf!

The National Centre of Religious Education for Wales
and Philosophy, Ethics and Rcligion, Bangor University

NCREW appoints its first Student
Ambassador!

Callum Morrissey
(Ysgol Emrys ap lwan)

“Heddwch yn ein Haddysg”
ar Ddiwrnod \1‘1\ nqxxhdol Hde\\Lh

ILtthmn Peace”
on II“l[LIﬂJ[lOﬂdl Peace Day

PRIFYSGOL

B 21.09.24

2S abed




MIS HANES POBL DDU
BLACK HISTORY MONTH

Athronwyr a meddylwyr
crefyddol du o bwys.

Significant black
philosophers and
religious thinkers.

PRIFYSGOL

BANGOR

UNIVERSITY
WELIGIOUS EDUCATION FOR WALES

DELORES S. WILLIAMS
(1937-2022)

* Diwinydd arloesol sy'n adnabyddus
am ddatblygu diwinyddiaeth
fenywaidd, gan ganolbwyntio ar
brofiadau menywod Du yn y
meddw| Cristnogol.

Yn ei llyfr, Sisters in the Wilderness,
mae hi'n ailddehongli naratifau
beiblaidd trwy lens fenywaidd.

Mae Williams yn beirniadu
diwinyddiaeth draddodiadol, gan
eiriol dros ryddhad a moeseg
goroesi fel rhan ganoclog o
frwydrau ysbrydol a chymdeithasol

PRIFYSGOL

BANGOR menywaod Du.

UNIVERSITY
WELIGIOUS EDUCATION FOR WALES




PRIFYSGOL

BANGOR

UNIVERSITY
CANOLFAN GIMIDLARTHOL
ABBYRG GREFYODGL CVEEY
ATIONAL CINTRE OF

n MAL €
EELIGIONE EDUCATION FER WALEY

WYTHNOS RYNGFFYDD
INTERFAITH WEEK

Beth ydyw a pham
bod angen wythnos
o’r fath?

Inter Faith
Week

What is it and why
do we need such a
week?

ONAL CENTR
BELIGIGEY FEUCATION FOR WLL

PRIFYSGOL

UNIVERSITY
EANDLFAN SUMIDLANTHSL
ABEVEG GREFVODOL CWEEL

HATI MTRE OF

" TEBYGRWYDD

» Cysuniadau allweddol a geir mewn llower o safbwyntiau crefyddol
ac anghrefyddol y byd:

o Rheol Aur: Mae llawer o grefyddau yn dysgu fersiwn o’r Rheol
Aur, neu’r egwyddor o drin eraill fel yr hoffai rhywun gael eu
trin; e.e., Cristnogaeth ("Gwnewch i eraqill fel yr hoffech i eraill ei
wneud ichi"), Islam ("Carwch yr hyn yn eich brawd rydych yn ei
garu ynoch chi'ch hun"), a Chonffiwsiaeth ("Peidiwch @ gwneud i
eraill yr hyn nad ydych chi am i eraill ei wneud ichi").

o Gofalu am y tlodion a'r diamddiffyn: Pwyslais ar elusen, tosturi,
a chefnogi’r rhai llai ffodus trwy arferion fel elusen rhodd,
tzedakah, zakat, a seva.

o Straeon maddeuant a straeon ynghylch natur a’r amgylchedd.

o Gweddi a Myfyrdod.

o Symbolau goleuni a gobaith: Mae golau yn symbol a rennir
mewn amryw systemau ffydd, sy’'n cynrychioli gobaith, daioni,
neu bresenoldeb dwyfol. Mae Diwali mewn Hindwaeth,

Vesak mewn Bwdhaeth i gyd yn dathlu gyda symbolaeth golau.

. Hanukkah mewn Iddewiaeth, y Nadolig mewn Cristnogaeth, a

G abed

BANGOR




Prosiect Ymchwil

* Prosiect Ymchwil: Ymgymryd a phrosiect ymchwil
naw mis ar ddarpariaeth addysgu CGM ledled

Cymru.
« Canfuwyd pwyntiau pwysig a rhai agweddau a
oedd yn peri pryder.

GG abed




9G abed

Prosiect Ymchwil

Heriau Systematig mewn CGM: Ansicrwydd ynghylch ‘mandadol’.
Diffyg Cydymffurfiaeth Cyfreithiol?

Cyfyngiadau Adnoddau: Un gwerslyfr CGM swyddogol sy’n bod — yn y Saesneg,
heb unrhyw gyfwerth cyfrwng Cymraeg. Fodd bynnag, nid yw wedi derbyn sél
bendith CBAC na Llywodraeth Cymru.

Gwahaniaeth o ran Dyrannu Amser.

Roedd 65% o'r ysgolion yn addysgu CGM fel rhan o gwricwlwm cymysg y
Dyniaethau, yn aml gydag amser a sylw anghyfartal o gymharu & phynciau fel
Hanes a Daearyddiaeth.

Hyder Athrawon a Hyfforddiant: Mae diffyg cyfleoedd hyfforddi a datblygiad
proffesiynol yn rhwystro hyder a chymhwysedd athrawon wrth gyflwyno gwersi
RVE effeithiol.

CANOLFAN GENEDLAETHOL
ADDYSG GREFYDDOL CYMRU
NATIONAL CENTRE OF
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION FOR WALES



)G abed

Prosiect Ymchwil

* Heriau Asesu: Mae amwysedd ynghylch dilyniant RVE a dulliau

asesu wedi gadael addysgwyr yn chwilio am ganllawiau cliriach a
strategaethau trawsgwricwlaidd.

 Effeithiau Cadarnhaol CGM: Er gwaethaf heriau, mae rhai ysgolion

yn adrodd bod trosglwyddo o AG i CGM wedi gwella diwylliant
myfyrwyr ac amgylcheddau addysgu.

« Materion Staffio: Nid oes gan lawer o ysgolion arbenigwyr CGM, ac

yn aml mae'n ofynnol i athrawon addysgu pynciau lluosog, gan
effeithio ar gysondeb ac ansawdd cyflwyno CGM.

CANOLFAN GENEDLAETHOL
DDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDDD
NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION FOR WALES



Prosiectau a Chyfleoedd
cyfredol

* Cydweithio a CYSAG Conwy ac Abertawe |
ddarparu sesiynau fin nos ar wahanol agweddau ar

CGM.
* Ymateb i geisiadau gan yr ymgynghorwyr CGM /
athrawon.

gG abed



6G abed

Prosiectau a Chyfleoedd
cyfredol

* Mentoriaeth Athrawon: Fis Chwefror 2025, byddem yn
lansio rhaglen fentora am ddim i athrawon fydd yn gorfod
addysgu Astudiaethau Crefyddol ar gyfer lefel TGAU ond
nad ydynt wedi eu hyffroddi mewn AC/AG/CGM.

* Cynllun 15 mis o gefnogaeth, sesiynau arbenigol a
chefnogol.

* Dyddiad cau cyflwyno cais: Ebrill 2025.
* Dechrau’r cynllun: Medi 2025.




Prosiectau a Chyfleoedd
cyfredol

« Sesiynau Adolygu Safon Uwch a Safon Uwch-
Gyfrannol yn ystod y Pasg.

* Meysydd: Bwdhaeth, Athroniaeth, Moeseg a
Christnogaeth.

09 abed




Ymchwil CGM

« Parhau gyda’r ymchwil a ddechreuodd yn 2023 ac
a gyhoeddwyd fel adroddiad fis Ebrill 2024.

 Ail gam: cyfweliadau gydag athrawon cwbl
anhysbys.

 Bwydo'n 6l i'r Llywodraeth.

T9 abed




Cysylltwch ar bob cyfri

* | ymweld ag ysgolion / darparu sesiynau adolygu /
hyfforddiant.

* Rhannu adnoddau.
» Cyfeirio at fudiadau / fannau perthnasol.

29 abed




Cysyllitwch ar bob cyfri

* E-bost: ncrew@bangor.ac.uk

* Dr Gareth Evans-Jones: g.evans-
jones@bangor.ac.uk

* Instagram: @ncrewales

 Linkedln: Canolfan Genedlaethol Addysg
Grefyddol Cymru

« Gwefan CGAGC - ar wefan Prifysgol Bangor.

€9 abed



79 abed

CANOLFAN GENEDLAETHOL
ADDYSG GREFYDDOL CYMRU
NATIONAL CENTRE OF
RELIGIOUS EDUCATION FOR WALES

Diolch am
wrando!




	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	6 SACRE GWYNEDD ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2023/24
	7 UPDATE ON THE TEACHING PROVISION OF RELIGION, VALUES AND ETHICS IN SCHOOLS IN WALES REPORT
	Canolfan Genedlaethol Addysg Grefyddol Cymru (Cymraeg/Welsh Only)


